
Inland Wetlands & Watercourses Conservation Commission & 
Aquifer Protection Agency    
Public Hearing & Regular Meeting Minutes   March 15, 2012  Page 2 

 
GRISWOLD INLAND WETLANDS & WATERCOURSES  
CONSERVATION COMMISSION 
 
REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES  MARCH 15, 2012   GRISWOLD TOWN HALL 
 

I. Public Hearing (7:00 P.M.) 
1. Call to Order  
 
Chair  Courtland  Kinnie  called  this  public  hearing  of  the  Griswold  Inland  Wetlands  &  Watercourses 
Conservation Commission to order on March 15, 2012 at 7:20 p.m. 
 

2. Roll Call & Determination of Quorum 
 

Present:  Courtland  Kinnie,  Robert  Parrette,  Stacie  Stadnicki,  Lawrence  Laidley,  Lauren  Churchill,  Town 
Planner Carl Fontneau, WEO Peter Zvingilas, Recording Secretary Donna Szall 

 

Absent:     Edward (Jay) Waitte, Glen Norman, Dean Rubino, Alternate Gary Serdechny, Clarence Merrill 
 

There  was  a  quorum  for  this  public  hearing.    C.  Kinnie  welcomed  L.  Churchill  a  new  alternate  to  the 
commission. 
 

3. Matter Presented for Public Comment 
 

A. Discussion  and  Action  on  the  Griswold  Municipal  Aquifer  Protection  Area  Regulations  that  detail  the 
registration and  future permit procedures or  limitations  for a  list of  land uses  in an Aquifer Protection Area 
Overlay Zone on  the  recently  revised Zoning Map.   These  regulations are modeled after  those provided by 
CTDEEP and are designed to protect groundwater that may be associated with public water supplies supplying 
over 1000 people. 

 
C.  Kinnie  asked  C.  Fontneau  to  address  any  housekeeping  issues.    C.  Fontneau  explained  that  we  reviewed  the 
regulations and that they are proscribed by DEEP and by legal settlements reached nearly 15 years ago.  C. Fontneau 
stated that there is a submission from Mr. Francouer representing a Pleading for an Environmental Intervention under 
Section  22a‐19.   He  suggested  that  the  Commission  should  recognize Mr.  Francouer  to make  representations  and 
submissions  of  evidence  that would  prevent  the  commission  from  enacting  these  APA  regulations.      C.  Fontneau 
advised Mr. Francouer  that he must back up his  representations with evidence and  information  in order  to have  it 
count. 
 
C. Kinnie stated that the Commission recognizes Joel Francouer as a CEPA  Intervenor  in these proceedings. He asked 
Mr. Francouer  to come up  to present  testimony or call any witnesses  that will help  in any  information you wish  to 
present.   Joel Francouer submitted photographs of the railroad tracks and photographs of railroad ties along the water 
and a 3 possible dumps.  C. Fontneau asked if the photographs were labeled with the date and the general location.  J. 
Francouer stated no.   C. Kinnie stated that they are dated as of March 4; and asked if they were taken and developed 
recently. J. Francouer stated yes.  He explained that the photos were of his property and the tracks to Rita's Way.  He 
stated  that DEEP has  taken  it upon  themselves  for  this overlay zone.   He stated  that  the overlay area kills Route 12 
North of any development unless it meets DEEP criteria.  J. Francouer read from the General Statutes of Environmental 
Protection  Act  provides  anyone  an  adequate  remedy  for  protection  of water  air  and  other  natural  recourses  and 
reasonable pollution may act as an intervenor.  He stated that there is tons of pollution in these areas and urged that 
the commission vote no  in  this  issued.   He explained  that he has submitted correspondence  to  the  Inland Wetlands



 

Inland Wetlands & Watercourses Conservation Commission & 
Aquifer Protection Agency    
Public Hearing & Regular Meeting Minutes   March 15, 2012  Page 2 

Commission of his concerns as well as letters of concerns; history of unethical things done in the past by public officials and 
that Section 22a‐19b, he read for the record.  He stated that there are flowage rights of Clayville pond.  He explained that if 
the overlay area runs to the wells across from the barbershop on Route 201; then it is more than five miles from the Stone 
Hill Road Reservoir.   He stated that the overlay plan would have to be enlarged to include the reservoir.  He stated that for 
the wells on route 201, there is pollution from the Yaworski land fill is 1.5 miles from the overlay zone.  He asked if the DEEP 
did  testing  of  these  areas  or  did  they  just  rubberstamp  this  overlay  zone.    He  stated  that  they  left  out  the  polluted 
Quinebaug River, the Ashland Lake and the Triangle Property and that the people in this area are being taken for granted. 
 
C. Kinnie stated  that  the overlay zone only applies  to  the well head  that  is  for  the wells on  route 201  that serves 1,000 
people which does not affect the Stone Hill Reservoir which  is an open to the air reservoir.   He stated that the zone was 
designed by DEEP.   C. Fontneau stated that there have been five versions of the map that  included based on testing test 
well hydrodynamic modeling of where the water was coming from to the wells which took more than ten years for this well 
field alone.   He explained  that Ashland Pond and Triangle were  in earlier maps but after more  testing  those areas were 
removed.    C.  Kinnie  stated  that  the water  testing  is  done  by  the water  company  and  did  not  know  the water  testing 
schedule for this water supply. 
 
S. Stadnicki stated that testing can be done daily, weekly, monthly, quarterly, yearly, biannually,   once every three years, 
once every  five  years.    She  stated  that  for bacteria  it  is done weekly.    She  stated  that daily would be at  the  reservoir, 
chlorine, fluoride, color, turbidity.   She works at the  lab  in Norwich and does bacteria.     She stated that the reservoir has 
operators on site to do the testing because testing must be done with a six to eight hour window.  She stated that she did 
not know who does the testing for the reservoir.   
 
C. Fontneau stated in terms of development, the overlay zone is not a prohibition of development on Route 12, it is only the 
activities  on  the  list  and  those  are  not  prohibited  as  long  as  the  activity  is  registered  and  demonstrate  that  the  Best 
Management practices are in use and the activity may be continued.  He explained that a new permit can be given for an 
activity on  the  list can be started as  long as  the best management practices can be proved.   He stated  that most of  the 
commercial activities that are not on the list may be done without must difficulty and are not inconsistent with the Aquifer 
Protection Area Regulations.  He stated that most of the property in the overlay zone is residential and is limited what the 
impact  is on the existing commercial  facilities with a couple of  larger exceptions such as American  Industries.   He stated 
that for Adelman's gravel excavation is not affected very much or for any future uses of that property that are not on the 
list. 
 
J. Francouer stated that there are some developable properties on Route 12 that are for sale right now.  C. Fontneau stated 
that if they are developed in a way that is not on that list they can be developed beyond and without consideration of the 
aquifer protection regulations.   C. Fontneau stated that J. Francouer must submit more information regarding the pollution 
in  that area.    J. Francouer explained  that  the  four mills  that were  there  from 1820's  to 1917 when  the  last one burned 
down; and he felt that the byproducts of that mill are all  in the area between his property and Rita's Way.   C. Fontneau 
asked  if  he  had  any  other  evidence  that would  support  this.    J.  Francouer  stated  that  other  than  the  photographs  he 
submitted, no. 
 
S. Stadnicki asked  if the DEEP did testing  in these areas.   C. Fontneau stated that the testing for the APA regulations was 
hydrological testing and volumetric modeling.  They did not do testing in the overlay zone; they tested at the well head.  S. 
Stadnicki asked  if they did any water quality testing.   C. Fontneau did not think so.   He stated that there are 140 Level A 
public water supplies and 80 water supplies are under these regulations and the rest will have APA regulations because it is 
100 percent proscribed by the DEEP and 15 years of litigation for grandfathering existing facilities and permitting new ones 
and protecting the ground water for public water supply.  He stated that the uses in the present zoning regulations can be 
done without registration with the aquifer protection agency. 
 
C. Fontneau asked if J. Francouer had other evidence to present.  J. Francouer stated that this is completely done by DEEP, 
he was concerned that this is killing Route 12 and why it did not cover, Route 138, Route 201 or Ashland Lake or Triangle 
Wire.  He stated that the correspondence and other items submitted should go the DEEP and he will be contacting them. C. 
Fontneau  stated  that  this  information will  be  forwarded  to  the DEEP.    C.  Fontneau  stated  that  this  information  is  not 
evidence and is not relevant to these proceedings. 
 
P. Zvingilas stated that if testing is not done for the water quality they want to control.  C. Fontneau stated that they do at 
the well head.  C. Kinnie stated that they look and the hydrology.  C. Fontneau explained that the DEEP is trying to insure 
that future use does not create more pollution; and not determining the present level of pollution.  There was discussion of 
this matter.  
 



 

Inland Wetlands & Watercourses Conservation Commission & 
Aquifer Protection Agency    
Public Hearing & Regular Meeting Minutes   March 15, 2012  Page 3 

S. Stadnicki asked if P. Zvingilas mark on the map where the wells are located on Route 201.  J. Francouer showed where his 
property was on the map. 
 
C. Kinnie asked if any correspondence will not be arriving from DEEP. C. Fontneau stated that he spoke to DEEP and made 
recommendations on closing the public hearing and that the effective date will be the date of DEEP approval. 
 
S. Stadnicki asked what our responsibilities are.  C. Fontneau explained that as for the public hearing if Mr. Francouer has 
any other evidence to present or any comments from the public, if the commission has other questions and then close the 
public hearing.  We can act on the public hearing in the APA portion of the meeting.  She asked if the public hearing had to 
be closed tonight.   C. Fontneau stated that  it would depend  if there are further questions by the commission; and that  it 
can be kept open another month.   C. Kinnie stated that the state has sent us a time  line for a decision  in the matter.   C. 
Fontneau stated that the deadline is tonight. 
 
J. Francouer stated that he has been in touch with the DEEP.  He stated that he has recorded his contacts with the DEEP in a 
Journal  since October.    He  stated  that  a  representative  of DEEP  has  been  to  his  house  and walked  his  property.   He 
mentioned that the state has put road scrapping in his yard in the past.  He stated that a phone call from Bill Warzecha.  C. 
Fontneau stated that he is with solid waste.   J. Francouer spoke to Mr. Warzecha who told him that the solid waste division 
would contact him. J. Francouer stated that not hearing from the state, he spoke to the EPA in Boston that sent him a form 
for an historical dump site under 10 yards can proceed through their direction to clean it up.  He did not complete the form 
because he was not  responsible  for  this dump.     He  stated  that he will  call  the DEEP  tomorrow with  the  information  I 
received today regarding the overlay area.   He is doing this to satisfy his beliefs of the governing parties of the Town in the 
past that should be responsible for what has and is happening. 
 
C. Fontneau asked if J. Francouer had any evidence that would hold the commission up in enacting these regulations.  He 
stated that this sounds  like a solid waste/junk yard  issued.   J. Francouer stated that Al Gosselin from Uncas Public Health 
has seen the debris on his property.  He stated that he has not found information about the flowage rights of Clayville pond 
and how the DEEP based the overlay and why it was this area and not the Ashland Lake Area. 
 
C. Fontneau  stated  that  the  regulation  is  to prevent  future pollution and not  to determine what  is here under baseline 
conditions.  
 
J. Francouer thanked the commission for their time.  C. Kinnie thanked Mr. Francouer. 
 
C. Kinnie asked if there are other comments from the public.  A woman asked for a copy of the regulations.  C. Kinnie gave a 
copy  to  this  individual.   C.  Fontneau  stated  that  these  are  the model  regulations of October 2010  from DEEP with  the 
Town's name inserted because these regulations are proscribed by the DEEP.  He explained that there is a list of what uses 
must be registered. 
 
C. Kinnie asked for other comments.  P. Zvingilas asked if there is a registration fee.  C. Fontneau stated that there is a fee 
schedule on page 24 of the regulations which he read for the record. There was discussion of this matter including that the 
fee schedule will be added to the town fee ordinance.  
 
R. Parrette asked if we can say no to these regulations.  C. Kinnie stated no, not really, the state will penalize the town. C. 
Fontneau  stated  that  it will be  through  legal action and a  consent decree..   C.  Fontneau  stated  that aquifer protection 
agency.  R. Parrette asked who enforces it.  C. Fontneau stated that aquifer protection agent.  R. Parrette asked if there is a 
violation of the act and are given a cease and desist, they will ignore it.  C. Fontneau stated that it will be referred to the 
State.  There was discussion of this matter including that it is an unfunded mandate.  
 
L.  Laidley  asked  how we  as  the  Commission  determine best management  practices.  C.  Fontneau  stated  that  there  are 
definitions  in these regulations and there can be consultants to be paid by an applicant.   C. Fontneau explained that out 
town engineer actually  reviewed a site plan  for a business on Route 12 based on  the proposed  regulations because  the 
work was to be done  in the overlay zone.   R. Parrette asked what the concern was for American  Industries.   C. Fontneau 
stated that some of their past practices have not been consistent with best management practices. There was discussion of 
this matter. 
 
C. Fontneau stated that we do not have a choice in enacting these regulations.  L. Churchill stated that the regulations do 
not preclude  cleaning up  things  already  there  and have  existed  for many  years.      She did not  think  that  it would  stall 
development very much since people are more aware of what effects we have on our air and water.  She stated that she 



 

Inland Wetlands & Watercourses Conservation Commission & 
Aquifer Protection Agency    
Public Hearing & Regular Meeting Minutes   March 15, 2012  Page 4 

felt the regulations were a good thing.  She stated that with the wells being where they are which are downhill and to the 
south of the overlay zone to protect the aquifer. 
P.  Zvingilas  stated  that protecting  the  aquifer  and  the water  supply  and  that  this water  goes  to  Lisbon  for  their  future 
development.   S. Stadnicki asked  if Plainfield has to enact these regulations.   C. Fontneau stated yes as does Canterbury.  
There was discussion of this matter.  
 
C. Kinnie asked for any other comments. He asked for a motion to close the public hearing.   L. Laidley made a motion to 
close the public hearing for the APA regulations based on the DEEP model.  S. Stadnicki seconded the motion. 
 

II. REGULAR MEETING (7:30 P.M.) 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
C. Kinnie called this regular meeting of the Inland Wetlands Commission to order on March 15, 2010 at 8:18 p.m.  
 

2. Roll Call & Determination of a Quorum 
 

Present:  Courtland  Kinnie,  Robert  Parrette,  Stacie  Stadnicki,  Lawrence  Laidley,  Lauren  Churchill,  Town 
Planner Carl Fontneau, WEO Peter Zvingilas, Recording Secretary Donna Szall 

 

Absent:     Edward (Jay) Waitte, Glen Norman, Dean Rubino, Alternate Gary Serdechny, Clarence Merrill 
 

There was a quorum for this public hearing.   
 

3. Written Complaints 
 

A. There were no written  complaints.   C.  Fontneau  stated  that  there  is  correspondence  that  should be 
discussed in the Enforcement Officer's report from James Mulholland. 

 

4. Applications 
 

A. CC 10‐12 Town of Griswold, 28 Main Street, Griswold, CT.   Property  location: Popple Bridge Road  starting at 
Glasgo Road. Requesting approval for commercial/ industrial activity within a regulated area in order to increase 
road width to 22 ft., to raise existing road about one foot to achieve proper coverage over cross pipes D1‐D4 and 
to install flared ends and riprap to D1‐D4 and to install driveway culverts for D5‐D7 with flared ends and riprap and 
installation of stone swales along north side of roadway above pipes D1‐D3.  Location is in the R‐60 zone. 

 
C. Kinnie asked  if  there was someone  to discuss  this application.   Todd Babbitt, Road Superintendent, Town of Griswold 
presented his application. C. Kinnie stated  that  this application was before us  last month and one of  the  issues was  the 
drainage easement; he asked if there was a resolution.  T. Babbitt stated no; but that they are going to the bottom of the 
hill with no drainage improvements at this time.  He stated that at some point in the future, they will come back for another 
permit.   C. Kinnie asked  if there will be no drainage  improvements when we get to the bottom of the hill, where will the 
water be going.  T. Babbitt stated the water will go where it is going now with no changes and no more directional water in 
that area; we will keep the road with the current cross slope.  He stated that the Boundaries design in to pick up water at 
the top section to pick up water from the north side to the south side before the crest of the hill at about 25% which will 
drain into a wetlands area and then into Pachaug Pond.  
 
C. Kinnie asked if it would alleviate the problem at the house that has the flooding problem.  T. Babbitt stated that it will not 
alleviate this flooding problem; it will not worsen the condition but it will not alleviate the problem.  He explained that we 
have no permission to go north or south of the project site.  He explained that an easement is needed from the property 
that has the flooding problem and the property east or uphill of the problem, a basin would be put in that area deeded to 
the town to collect the water and slope the property to that structure and then drains to the wetlands.  P. Zvingilas asked if 
it was because there were no easements yet.   T. Babbitt stated that  it  is not going to happen.   T. Babbitt stated that the 
upper portion of the road will be fixed and there is FEMA money available for the paving replacement that is good to June 
of  next  year with  an  addition  one  year  extension.    There was  discussion  of  this matter  including  should  there  be  no 
resolutions  to  sell  the  town  an  easement;  eminent  domain may  be  considered  within  the  next  24  or  30 months  of 
extensions from FEMA. 
 



 

Inland Wetlands & Watercourses Conservation Commission & 
Aquifer Protection Agency    
Public Hearing & Regular Meeting Minutes   March 15, 2012  Page 5 

L. Laidley asked if there would be any erosion on the upper part of the road.  T. Babbitt stated no, there will be two stone 
swales up‐gradient of the current pipes that flow north to south in that area.  He stated that there are two flared ends in an 
area during a rain event flows water.  R. Parrette asked if the water is flowing right, what this water will do to the people 
where  you are  forced  to  stop.   T. Babbitt explained  that on Popple Bridge about 500 or 600  feet down,  there are  two 
culverts that go right to left and they take all the water off Route 201 through a pond off of Popple Bridge Road, comes out 
under  the  road  to a wetlands south of  the project site.   He stated most of  the ground water  flows under  the driveways 
through a  swale  into a yard which  is a bowl where  this house  sits.   He  stated  that  the proposed design will pick up 25 
percent of ground water, move it to the left hand side before the crest of the hill to alleviate some of the flooding to this 
house.   T. Babbitt explained that after the crest of the hill, the road will be crowned properly and the water will shed to 
both sides of the roadway.   He stated that the paving will be recycled asphalt which we use on  low traffic volume roads. 
There was discussion of this matter including that the cost is with FEMA funding and town funding.  
 
C. Kinnie asked for further questions.  C. Fontneau asked if the plans require to be reviewed.  T. Babbitt stated that the two 
options are on the plan.  C. Kinnie asked for a motion. 
MOTION:  L. Laidley made a motion to approve CC 10‐12 with the proper erosion and sedimentation control measures in 
place and that  it will terminate at the bottom of the elevation of the hill. S. Stadnicki seconded the motion.   All were  in 
favor. The motion was carried. 
 

B. CC 11‐12 Town of Griswold, 28 Main Street, Griswold, CT. Property Location: Edmond Road Bridge. Requesting 
approval for commercial/industrial activity within the regulated area and watercourse  in order to remove bridge 
superstructure and partial demolition of existing abutments; replacement with new bridge structure consisting of 
steel beams bearing on cast‐in‐place concrete abutments supported by structural piles. Adjacent fill slopes in front 
of  abutments  and  wing  wall  faces  to  be  lined  with  standard  size  riprap material  for  long  term  stabilization.  
Location is in the R‐40 zone. 

 
C. Kinnie asked  if there was someone to represent the town.   Scott Medeiros, McFarland Johnson, stated that at the  last 
meeting the proposed plan was presented for replacement of the Edmond Road Bridge.  He stated that the signature and 
stamping issued have been solved.  He stated that the file is complete and asked for any questions from the commissioners.  
S. Medeiros recapped the project stating that precast box beam bridge and the super structure is deteriorating and that the 
abutments are in poor condition with significant scour and the structure is in need of replacement.   R. Parrette asked if this 
was FEMA money or town money.     S. Medeiros stated that  it  is 80 percent FEMA funds and 20 percent town fund.     He 
stated that this  is the second bridge to be completed.   R. Parrette asked when this bridge will be completed. S. Medeiros 
stated we are running  late  in the process; and  it will be a portion of the summer season and  it may be down during the 
winter for a total of about a year or so.  S. Stadnicki sated if the Bitgood Road Bridge will be open.  S. Medeiros stated that 
the second bridge on Bitgood Road  is  intended  to  remain open. He stated  that we did not want  to close Edmond Road 
Bridge but that there may be an overlap for a short stretch; and may have to wait to the following construction season for 
the second Bitgood Road Bridge. There was discussion of this matter.  
 
S. Medeiros  stated  that  the  impacts  to  the  project  have  been  reduced with  this  plan  and  about  1600  square  feet  of 
temporary disturbance and approximately 1800 s. f. of permanent disturbance and that the old abutments will remain  in 
place and a lot of work in the water has been eliminated.  S. Stadnicki asked C. Fontneau about the plan. C. Fontneau stated 
that the minimum impact wetlands alternative has been taken.  There was discussion of this matter including that there are 
two types of retaining walls on the approach site to avoid filling.  
 
MOTION:   S. Stadnicki made a motion to approve CC 11‐12 with the  installation and maintenance of proper erosion and 
sedimentation controls as  shown on  the  site plan until complete  stabilization of disturbed  soils. L. Laidley  seconded  the 
motion. All were in favor. The motion was carried. 
 

C. CC 12‐12 Dupuis, Joseph, 7 Redbrook Lane, Ledyard, CT 06339. Property Location: 1829 Glasgo Road, Griswold. 
Requesting approval for residential activity with a regulated area to construct a single family residence with on‐site 
septic system, proposed well, footing drain outlet pipe, and driveway with associated grading. Located in an R‐60 
zone. 

 
C. Kinnie asked  if there was someone to represent the applicant.   John Boots, Boundaries, LLC presented the application.  
He explained that this application was presented last month and that it was recommended that the dock be reduced from 
32 ft. to 30 ft.  He submitted revised plans to the Commission.  He asked for questions from the commission. C. Kinnie asked 
what features would be used for low impact development would be used on this waterfront property.  C. Fontneau stated 
that there were no LID uses on the plan.  He explained that low impact uses are to be considered to slow stormwater so it 



 

Inland Wetlands & Watercourses Conservation Commission & 
Aquifer Protection Agency    
Public Hearing & Regular Meeting Minutes   March 15, 2012  Page 6 

does not run  into the pond because  in transfers phosphorus from fertilizers. C. Fontneau explained that there could be a 
gently sloping grass swale at the lip of the beach and across the open areas next to the riprap to contain the water to go 
into the soil rather than into the pond or low ground cover can be used for approximately 900 s. ft. which is 10 percent of 
the size of the beach for the stormwater to sit so it can be absorbed in to the ground. 
 
C.  Kinnie  stated  that we  asked Mr.  Faulise  last month  and Mr.  Faulise  stated  that  the  house  at  grade would  reduce 
excavation and by maintaining grade and not  increasing  slopes  stormwater  flowage would not be  increased  toward  the 
pond, geothermal wells will be installed, and there was minimal clearing in this existing field. 
 
J. Boots stated he only knew about  the dock. He stated  that  the existing slopes have not changed  toward  the pond. He 
stated that the fill is for adequate cover of the septic system with not much fill around the house.  
 
C. Kinnie asked for questions.  L. Churchill asked if there was a suggestion of certain plants instead of a lawn. She asked if 
bamboo has been considered.  P. Zvingilas asked if it was the bamboo weed.  C. Kinnie stated that the town has information 
about wetland plants to be used for residents to obtain. There was discussion of this matter including rain garden plants as 
a low impact development feature to encourage water to be taken up by the plants or absorbed by the soil.   
 
P. Zvingilas stated that there were walkways for animals to use and asked if we still use those.  C. Kinnie stated that we have 
not done this in awhile because the properties have not been cleared.  J. Boots stated that there are trees along the stone 
wall at the property lines. He stated that there is a path where you can walk without a problem.  C. Kinnie stated that it has 
been a hay field for a number of years. There was discussion of this matter.  
 
C. Fontneau stated that the beach area is about 900 sq. feet. He showed the commission on the site plan the location of a 
shallow grassy swale across the front of the beach to hold the water up to deter beach erosion and the location of low lying 
ground  cover  totaling  900  sq.  ft.  in  sections which will  intercept  stormwater  to  the  pond which will  add  value  to  the 
property.    C.  Fontneau  stated  that  this  policy  can  be  used  on wetland  permits  to  encourage  low  impact  development 
features.  He stated that he would be happy to work with the developer of this property suggested locations for this.   
 
R. Parrette asked when they planned to start this.  J. Boots stated that it will be as soon as possible. C. Kinnie stated that 
there have been problems with  lots on the water with beaches where the water erodes the sand  into the water creating 
channeling.  He stated that a swale to protect the beach is a good idea.  There was discussion of this matter including the 
use of low ground covers and plantings can be added to the upper part of the grassy areas and a grassy swale in front of the 
beach. 
 
L.  Laidley  stated  that  if  a  beach  is  to  be  renewed  then  a  gentle  swale  should  be  installed  along  with  low  impact 
development plantings. P. Zvingilas asked  if there should be a new site plan.   He would  like to have something to  look at 
when he does his inspection.  C. Kinnie stated that the swale should be no deeper than six inches to move the water from 
side  to  side  rather  than  run  into  the pond and a  combination of  low ground  cover  to make up  the  square  footage.   C. 
Fontneau stated that this will prevent phosphorus from going into the pond. There was discussion of this matter. 
 
J. Boots stated that there can be a dotted line on the site plan showing the swale and plantings. C. Kinnie stated that those 
items can be conditions on the approval. P. Zvingilas suggested that there be an as‐built for the swale before the CO.   J. 
Boots  asked  if  a  letter  from  the  engineer would  be  needed.    P.  Zvingilas  state  that  there  should  be  a  letter  from  the 
engineer.     L. Laidley asked what the square footage was.   C. Kinnie stated 900 sq. ft.  is the amount of the ground cover 
removed  for the beach.   R. Parrette stated that we need something as a consistent standard to use  for each application 
when a beach is involved.  There was discussion of this matter.  
 
C. Kinnie asked the total frontage on the pond.  J. Boots stated that it was 428 feet. C. Kinnie stated that it should be up‐
gradient of the beach and to the west of the house.  C. Fontneau stated not removing vegetation but adding plantings and 
that he would be happy to help the engineer. 
C. Kinnie asked for a motion. 
MOTION:    L.  Laidley made  a motion  to  approved  CC  12‐12  with  the  following  conditions  l)  the  proper  erosion  and 
sedimentation controls  installed and maintained  throughout  the project. 2)  installation of Low  impact development of a 
gentle grassy swale up‐gradient of the beach and  low ground cover plantings to offset the disturbance of the  installation 
the beach for a total of 900 sq. ft. 3) a letter from the engineer; and 4) the plans to be revised to show the plantings and the 
swale.  R. Parrette seconded the motion.  All were in favor. The motion was carried. 
 



 

Inland Wetlands & Watercourses Conservation Commission & 
Aquifer Protection Agency    
Public Hearing & Regular Meeting Minutes   March 15, 2012  Page 7 

D. CC 13‐12 Town of Griswold, 28 Main Street, Griswold, CT.   Property Location: Geer Road and Lily Pond Road.  
Requesting  approval  for  commercial/industrial  activity within  the  150  ft  regulated  area  for  drainage  and  road 
improvements to widen/reconstruct road to a paved width of 22 ft. with catch basin/drainage pipe replacement, 
culvert  repair/replacement with minor  filling. Requesting waiver of  application  fees  for municipal maintenance 
improvements. Location in the R‐60/R‐80 zones. 

 
C. Kinnie asked if there was someone to represent the applicant.  John Boots, Boundaries, LLC presented the application for 
the  town.    He  submitted  revised  plans  to  the  commission.      C.  Kinnie  stated  that waived  fee was written  in  on  the 
application. D.  Szall  stated  that  they  paid  the  State  fee.  C.  Fontneau  stated  that  by  the  Land Use  Fee  ordinance  town 
applications are waived and for other boards and commission without action by the Commission.   
 
J. Boots explained the final details of the section of Lily Pond Road at the cemetery for changes to the existing cross culvert 
within the road catch basins will be placed on top of them.  He explained Sheet 4 details.  He stated that the road does not 
have bituminous curbing.  The road will be raised about two feet to sheet flow into the cemetery.  He stated that there is a 
berm at the pond at the nursery that stops the water from draining off the road.  He stated that there is an existing 15" cmp 
that will be replaced with 15 rcp with a flared end to extend into the wetlands.  He stated that there will be 25 sq. yds of 
wetland fill to properly install the pipe with adequate cover and to install the flared end.  He stated that an existing 15" rcp 
will remain  in the roach and catch basins will be  installed at either side and on the S.W. side will be an open back catch 
basin to catch ground water from the road with a swale to the existing wetlands and utilizing the existing 18" hdpe.  J. Boots 
stated that there is an existing culvert that will be moved down gradient so the water will drain into an existing outlet in the 
wetlands of which 150 sq. ft. will be disturbed to adequately cover the pipe and the flared end. 
 
J. Boots stated that at the two 48" pipes will not be touched but will have flared end units and inlet and outlet protection as 
required by the engineer. He stated here will be a guard rail installed along the headwall and sediment fence will be lining 
the entire wetlands for erosion and sedimentation controls.  He stated at Haley Meadow road existing paved leak off. 
 
R. Parrette asked about the paving of the rest of the road.     J. Boots stated that  it will be paved to Route 12.   T. Babbitt 
stated that the paving will be on Geer Road where  it splits and then on to Lily Pond Road and any surplus money will be 
used to pave Geer.  C. Fontneau stated that the town project is not subject to the new aquifer protection regulations. 
 
R. Parrette asked about the damage of the big trucks.  T. Babbitt stated that there is a berm at the nursery that stops the 
sheet flow to the pond.  He stated that fill will be added in the flat area in front of the cemetery to gradually increase the 
slope of the road so that the water will flow to the cross culvert at the end of the cemetery property where a catch basin 
with  a sump will be installed to clean out the sedimentation collected.  There was discussion of this matter including that 
the gravel excavation is nearing to a close. 
 
C. Kinnie asked  for  further questions. R. Parrette asked when you are doing  this. T. Babbitt explained  that  the work has 
already started from Route 201 to the split on Geer Road since  it  is out of the regulated area and they have  just started 
doing basins on Lily Pond Road.  There was discussion of this matter including the work was through a STEAP Grant. 
MOTION:    R.  Parrette made  a motion  to  approve  CC  13‐12  with  the  proper  erosion  control measures  installed  and 
maintained  in place until completion of the project. S. Stadnicki seconded the motion. All were  in favor. The motion was 
carried.  
 

5. Additional Business (New Applications) 
 

A. No new applications 
 

6. Reports from the Enforcement Officer 
 
P. Zvingilas stated that he and C. Fontneau went out to the Johnson Property at 54 Myrtle Road where there was 
a letter from Mr. Johanson's attorney that the work was done according to plan.   P. Zvingilas took photographs 
of  the property which  is all  stabilized and was designed according  to  the plan and he did not  see  that  there 
would be a problem with  that area.   C. Fontneau stated that Mr.  Johanson thought that the rip rap area that 
protects  the 15" pipe  should have been on  the 67  Jennifer  Lane property  in  the middle of  the wetlands.   C. 
Fontneau stated that it was Mr. Johanson's engineer, Paul Biscutti that had the riprap structure in the wetlands.  
P. Zvingilas stated that the rip rap is at the edge of the wetlands and with two sales that bring the water to it and 
the water was running when we were there.  C. Kinnie asked because it is a drainage easement that it must be 
maintained.  C. Fontneau stated that the 67 Jennifer Lane property has that responsibility.  There was discussion 



 

Inland Wetlands & Watercourses Conservation Commission & 
Aquifer Protection Agency    
Public Hearing & Regular Meeting Minutes   March 15, 2012  Page 8 

of this matter.     P. Zvingilas stated that plastic fabric was used to stabilize the area; but the grass  is coming up 
through it and it can be removed when the grass is fuller.   
 
P. Zvingilas submitted photographs of  the result of  the draw down at  the dams and along  the Pachaug River, 
Doanville  Pond,  Glasgo  Pond  and  Dam,  Pachaug  Pond,  Hopeville  Pond  and  Ashland  Lake  dam.    There was 
discussion of this matter.  
 
C. Kinnie stated that he received a phone call from the First Selectman where work was being done on Ashland 
Pond and  the Selectman  stated  that  the  resident went  to  the Planning office and was  told  that he needed a 
wetlands permit.  C. Kinnie told the selectman that if the work was being done by hand with a wheel barrow to 
clean up the muck  in front of this property; and that  if  it was to be hand work then  it  is maintenance and no 
permit was required; but if machinery was being used, then it would require a permit.  There was discussion of 
this matter.  
 

7. Old Business 
 
There was no old business. 

 
8. New Business 

 
A. Letter dated February 28, 2012 from Duane Button regarding renewal of the permit CC 18‐07 for 574 Shetucket 

Turnpike, Griswold. 
 
C. Fontneau explained the Mr. Button was asking  for a renewal of his wetlands permit.   He explained that with the new 
legislation of statute PA 11‐5 allows this permit to be extended for the next four years until 2016.   There was discussion of 
this matter including that the permit holder write a letter even though it is automatic to preserve the paper trail. 
C. Kinnie asked for a motion.   
MOTION:  R. Parrette made a motion to extend permit CC 18‐07 according to PA 11‐5 for an additional four years to expire 
on April 19, 2016.  L. Laidley seconded the motion.  All were in favor.  The motion was carried.  
 

9. Approval of Minutes 
 

A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 16, 2012 
 
C. Kinnie asked  for any corrections or omissions.   C. Kinnie stated  that  there was a correction on should read 
proper  instead  of  property; Voluntown  Road  should  read  on  page  2;  Plainfield  Road;  correct  the  date  from 
October to February. L. Laidley made a motion to approve the minutes as amended.  R. Parrette seconded the 
motion.  All were in favor. The motion was carried 
 

10. Communications 
 
A. CLEARSCAPES Newsletter Winter 2012 

 

B. ECCD Outlook Newsletter, Winter 10‐11‐2012 Edition 
 

C. Avalonia Trails Newsletter, Winter 2011‐2012 
 

D. The Habitat Newsletter, Winder 2011 
 

D.  Szall  stated  that  the Municipal Wetlands  Commissioners  Training  Program  announcement  is  in  the  correspondence 
folder.  C. Kinnie read that Segment 21 will be held on April 14th in Old Lyme and that there is one voucher for a commission 
to attend the training.  He read that the DEEP Segment 1 is available as an on‐line course. He asked if there would be a $65 
fee or use of the voucher. There was discussion of this matter.  C. Fontneau will e‐mail Darcy Winther about the on—line 
course  for  fee  and use of  voucher.   C. Kinnie  stated C.  Fontneau  should  tell Darcy Winther  that  the Wetlands Training 
Course should be free to wetlands commissioners and the only charge should be for a completion certificate. 
 
 C. Kinnie stated that the newsletter for Rivers Alliance Streamlines was also in the correspondence file if anyone wanted to 
look at it.   He stated that if someone is interested in signing up for the training program since there is one voucher and it 
will be held in Old Lyme. 



 

Inland Wetlands & Watercourses Conservation Commission & 
Aquifer Protection Agency    
Public Hearing & Regular Meeting Minutes   March 15, 2012  Page 9 

11. Reports from Members 
 
L. Laidley stated that he cleaned up a lot of debris from the bottom of Ashland Dam.  C. Kinnie asked for a report about the 
items removed and the number of hours spent so it can be added to the MS‐4 Report.  L. Laidley will submit a report. 
 

12. Conservation Commission Matters 
 
A. Discussion  to  revive  the April  Earth Day  celebration  for  the next  fiscal  year  activities  for  citizens  groups  to be 

involved with suggestions for events. 
 
C. Kinnie asked if C. Fontneau heard anything more from the Recreation Commission about the walking paths.  C. Fontneau 
stated no and he will find out.    C. Fontneau stated that the Recreation Commission wanted to put the walking paths to the 
water; but  the  state did not deed  the  land  for walking  trails  to  the water.     C. Fontneau  stated  that Griswold Now has 
disbanded and so there is no one to plant the planters on Main Street.  D. Szall suggested that the Senior Center may like to 
be  involved with  that project.     P. Zvingilas asked when Earth Day was.   D. Szall stated  that  it was April 22.   P. Zvingilas 
suggested that something could be done since the water will still be down.  L. Laidley suggested that work could be done in 
the cove on the other side of the guardrails since there is a lot of debris there.  C. Kinnie stated that it sounds like a good 
plan. P. Zvingilas asked if the commission can do this together.  P. Zvingilas will check with the property owner.  .  C. Kinnie 
needed property owner permission and  the  town  can have a  truck  to  remove  the debris.   There was discussion of  this 
matter.   L. Laidley stated that he will talk to the resident trooper if they would be free on this day.  C. Fontneau stated that 
he can do a press release for Earth Day.  C. Kinnie stated that we did it with the kinds for Rid Litter Day.   
 
C. Kinnie asked for a tentative date.  There was discussion of this matter including that it be done before April 22 and prior 
to our next regular meeting.  P. Zvingilas called T. Babbitt and arranged for the town truck for Sunday, March 25. P. Zvingilas 
stated that he will leave a roll‐off at the property next to the cove and P. Zvingilas will get permission from the landowner. 
There was discussion of this matter. C. Kinnie stated that it can be on Sunday afternoon at 1 p.m. for March 25, and April 
1st for a rain date.  L. Laidley will talk to the troopers for traffic control.  C. Kinnie asked for a notice to all board members to 
come to this clean up.  He asked for a motion. 
MOTION:  R. Parrette made a motion to set up an Earth Day Clean Up at Ashland Pond for Sunday March 25, 2012 at 1 p.m. 
with a rain date  for Sunday, April 1, 2012 at 1 p.m.     L. Laidley seconded  the motion. All were  in  favor. The motion was 
carried. 
 

13. Adjournment 
 
R. Parrette made a motion to adjourn.  L. Laidley seconded the motion.  The meeting adjourned at 10:10 p.m. 
 

III. Aquifer Protection Agency 
 

1. Call to Order  
 
C. Kinnie called this regular meeting of the Inland Wetlands Commission to order on March 15, 2010 at 10:12 p.m.  
 

2. Roll Call & Determination of Quorum 
 

Present:  Courtland  Kinnie,  Robert  Parrette,  Stacie  Stadnicki,  Lawrence  Laidley,  Lauren  Churchill,  Town 
Planner Carl Fontneau, WEO, Peter Zvingilas, Recording Secretary Donna Szall 

 

Absent:      Edward (Jay) Waitte, Dean Rubino, Glen Norman, Alternate Gary Serdechny, Clarence G. Merrill 
 

3. Matters Presented for Discussion 
 

A. Discussion and Action on the Griswold Municipal Aquifer Protection Area Regulations that detail the registration 
and future permit procedures or  limitations for a  list of  land uses  in an Aquifer Protection Area Overlay Zone on 
the recently revised Zoning Map.  These regulations are modeled after those provided by CTDEEP and are designed 
to protect groundwater that may be associated with public water supplies supplying over 1000 people.  

 
C. Kinnie stated that this was the topic of the public hearing this evening.  C. Kinnie stated that there was a pleading under 
Section 22a‐19 environmental intervention and to make a finding whether the commission would act on this matter based 
on the evidence presented. C. Kinnie stated that Mr. Francouer showed us the solid waste dumps and other debris along 



 

Inland Wetlands & Watercourses Conservation Commission & 
Aquifer Protection Agency    
Public Hearing & Regular Meeting Minutes   March 15, 2012  Page 10 

the  rail  road  tracks and  that Mr. Francouer was  in  touch with DEEP and  they  referred him  to  the Solid Waste Resource 
people and spoke with a Bill Warzecha and a woman from DEEP did look at the property. 
 
C. Kinnie stated that the Overlay Zone is for the protection of the public wells that serve over 1000 and the regulations are 
set up to protect future uses and current uses that fall under certain guidelines must meet Best management practices.  He 
stated that the water is tested by the water company at these wells so if there were hazardous materials showing up in the 
water, it would show up in their tests and the water would be deemed undrinkable.   C. Kinnie stated that he would infer 
that  the materials  in  those  dump  areas  are  not  transferring  into  the wells  at  this  time.   He  asked  for  other members 
comments.   
 
S. Stadnicki stated that this regulation is about preventing future contamination and not about correcting what has already 
happened as she understood it.  She stated that the hydrology of the area that the overlay zone is the potential area where 
the water for the wells comes from.  She stated that DEEP will not address an issued unless it affects the wells.  She stated 
that the wells are tested regularly at least once a year and that when a well goes on line it is tested immediately.  She stated 
that the wells are a back up when there  is a disruption at the reservoir on Stone Hill Road.   There was discussion of this 
matter.  
 
S. Stadnicki stated that the  information that Mr. Francouer submitted does not apply to the regulations.   He does have a 
point and that there should be a cleanup of the dump areas by the DEEP.  L. Laidley stated that he agreed with S. Stadnicki 
and we  are  forced  to  accept  it  from  the DEEP,  and  that Mr.  Francouer's  claims  are  legitimate but do not  apply  to  this 
legislation.  R. Parrette stated that if we do not accept these regulations, then the whole town will be penalized.  He stated 
that he has problems with this whole matter.  There was discussion of this matter including that the areas would be paying 
people to clean up these area.  
 
C. Kinnie stated that it is the finding of this commission that we do not find that the intervention affects the intent of these 
regulations that were heard under the public hearing this evening which we are considering now.  This does not mean that 
this commission  is not concerned about the materials shown  in the photographs that are within the regulated area or  in 
wetland soils. This Commission would also  raise concern  to DEEP  that  this may be something  they should be addressing 
especially since they have now mapped out this area and these areas fall within their overlay map.  They may want to give it 
some stronger consideration  than  they have  in  the past especially since  this  issue  is  foisted upon  this  town.   There was 
discussion of this matter.  S. Stadnicki made a motion that the commission finds that the environmental intervention under 
22a‐19  by Mr.  Joel  Francouer  that  there  was  no  convincing  evidence  presented  not  to  enact  the  Aquifer  Protection 
Regulations.  L. Laidley seconded the motion.  All were in favor. The motion carried. 
 
C. Kinnie asked for a motion to adopt the Aquifer Protection Regulations. R. Parrette made a motion to accept and approve 
the Griswold Municipal Aquifer Protection Regulations as presented to us by the State of Connecticut under duress and the 
direct  implication  that  the  Town will  be  penalize  if we  adopt  these  regulation  and  convey  them  to  DEEP when  DEEP 
approves  these  regulation  and  convey  them  to DEEP when DEEP  approved  them.    There was discussion of  this matter 
noting the displeasure of the commission. L. Laidley seconded the motion.  All were in favor. The motion was carried. 
 

4. Adjournment 
 
S.  Stadnicki made  a motion  to  adjourn.    L.  Laidley  seconded  the motion.  All  were  in  favor.    The meeting 
adjourned at 10:30 p.m. 
 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Donna M. Szall 
Recording Secretary 


